SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 14, 2016
8:59 a.m

8:59:34 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 8:59 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co- Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Gene Terriault, Deputy Director, Al aska Energy Authority,
Juneau; Chuck Kopp, Staff, Senator Peter Mcciche; M chael
Patterson, Self, Juneau; Angela Cernich, Self, Juneau;
Marquetta Andras, Self, Juneau; Joan Cahill, Self, Juneau,
Edy Rodewal d, Self, Juneau; Kristin Cox, Self, Juneau.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Zachary Stockton, Teens Against Tobacco, Kenai; Rachel
Todd, Teens Against Tobacco, Kenai; Jenny d endorff, Self,
Sol dotna; Panela Howard, Self, Soldotna; Carnen Lunde,
Kodi ak CHARR, Kodi ak; Terrence Robbins, Self, Ketchikan;
Angela Carroll, Snoke-Free Alternative Trade Association,
Wasilla; Alex MDonald, Owner, 1ceBox Vapory, Fairbanks;
Jessie Walton, Self, Fairbanks; Lincoln Bean Sr., Al
Heal t hcare, Kake; Robert Urata, Menber, Anerican Heart
Associ ati on, Juneau; D ana Redwood, Sel f, Anchor age;
Maur een Narus, Self, Anchorage; Bill Ross, Self, Anchorage;
Dal e Fox, President, Al aska CHARR, Anchorage; K T. MKee,
American Lung Association in Al aska, Mat - Su;  Ashl ey



Peltier, Sel f, Mat - Su; Robin M nard, Mat-Su  Health
Foundat i on, Mat - Su; Terry Snyder, Self, Mat su; Kar en

Per due, Sel f, Fai r banks; Larry Hackenm I | er, Sel f,
Fai r banks; Steve Warren, Self, Sitka; Tamm Meissner, Self,
Wangell; Steve Mapes, Self, Kenai; Chrystal Schoenrock,

Secretary, Kenai Peninsula CHARR, N kiski; Robin Forsi,
Sel f, Sol dotna; Johna Beach, Self, Kenai; Pete Burns, Self,
Anchor age; Stan  Sel man, Club Paris, Anchor age; Ken
Hel ander, Anerican Association of Retired Persons (AARP),
Anchorage; Julie Wigley, Self, Anchorage; Beverly Wol ey,
Self, Mat-Su; Gl Schiemann, Self, Anchorage; Katie
Steffens, Self, Anchorage; Wndie MacNaughton, Anerican
Heart Associ ation, Fairbanks; Kristen Luby, Self,

Anchorage; Carolyn dift, Self, Anchorage; Barbara Doty,
Al aska Acadeny of Family Physicians, Wasilla; Em |y Nenon
Anerican Cancer Society, Cancer Action Network, Juneau.

SUMVARY

SB 1 REGULATI ON OF SMOKI NG
SB 1 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

SB 56 MUNI ENERGY | MPROVEMNT ASSESSMNTS/ BONDS
SB 56 was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for further
consi derati on.

#sb56

SENATE BI LL NO. 56

"An Act adopting the Minicipal Property Assessed C ean
Energy Act; authorizing nunicipalities to establish
prograns to inpose assessnents for energy inprovenents
in regions designated by nmunicipalities; inposing
fees; and providing for an effective date."

9: 00: 44 AM

Co-Chair Kelly MOVED to ADOPT the commttee substitute for
SB 56, Work Draft 29-GS1021\H (Shutts, 4/15/15).

Co- Chair MacKi nnon OBJECTED for DI SCUSSI ON.

GENE TERRI AULT, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, ALASKA ENERGY AUTHORI TY
JUNEAU, explained the conmmttee substitute. He noted the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 03/ 14/ 16 8:59 A M



addition of the first four sections in the conmttee
substitute, which add the pace nechanism outlined in the
bill to the list of powers for first and second class
muni ci palities. He explained that it was determned that it
was left out of the original commttee substitute when the
bill was heard in the other body.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon W THDREW her OBJECTI ON. There being NO
OBJECTION, the commttee substitute was adopted.

9: 03: 56 AM
AT EASE

9:04: 11 AM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair MacKinnon noted that the public hearing was
closed. She looked at the previous version, which my
include "extra-territorial jurisdiction.” She stated that
the new commttee substitute held that information, but did
not see the |anguage. She queried nore information

regarding that issue. She noted the elimnation of
"cotermnous.” She queried a definition of "reporting
regardi ng assessnent."” She shared that she had not reviewed

the new conmttee substitute. She wondered if the types of
qgual i fied projects should be described that were subject to
the contractual assessnments. M. Terriault |ooked at page
11, line 8 for the definition of the qualified
i nprovenents.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered whether the Fairbanks Natural
Gas Project qualify for the tax assessnment proposal. M.
Terriault responded that, should the pace nechanism be
allowed for |ocal governnments to use, the Fairbanks
Nort hstar Borough was nost likely the first to inplenent
and work with local lenders in the state. He had identified
federal fund sources that were targeted energy efficiency
i nprovenents. He shared that the Energy Efficiency and
Conservation Loan Program The federal funds available for
that program were targeted at approximately $250 mllion.
The noney came with a 2 percent interest rate, so it was a
| ow cost source of capital. He shared that the regul ations
for the program specified that it could be wused for
repl acenent of existing fuel consum ng equipnent, using a
particular fuel wth a nore efficient fuel consumng
equi pnent that used another fuel. He stated that swtching
fromfuel oil to natural gas would qualify.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 03/ 14/ 16 8:59 A M



Co- Chair MacKi nnon shared that there would be discussions
regardi ng how the nunicipality would ask the general public
to assess their personal property to pay back the
expenditure. M. Terriault indicated in the affirmative.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon asked whether revenue bonds would
qualify. M. Terriault replied in the affirmtive. He
stated that general obligation bonds were prohibited.

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered if the bill was an enabling bill,
as opposed to a conpulsory bill. M. Terriault replied in
the affirmative. He explained that bill allowed a tool for

| ocal governnent that issued property tax to assist wth
energy efficiency financing.

Senator O son noted the efficiency of swtching to natura
gas. He wondered what would occur should the natural gas
price drastically increase. He queried alternatives to the
program subscribers. M. Terriault replied that the person
could utilize funds, should the program still exist. He
shared that the tool was nostly related to energy
efficiency. He remarked that the financing was avail able
for any energy efficiency inprovenents to a conmmercial
bui | di ng.

9:10: 54 AM

Senator O son noted that the recipient of the financing
woul d be "stuck”™ with the change, even with a change in the
comodity price. M. Terriault replied in the affirmative.
He shared that, once the inprovenents were nmade, the |oan
must be paid back

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if the program would access the
muni ci pal bond bank or other areas of the state with debt
or obligation. M. Terriault replied that, should the |ocal
governments chose to participate, they would provide |ow
cost capital to the local comercial property owners. The
| ocal governnent could choose a revenue bond, but there
were other federal sources available. He did not believe
that the bond would default to a general obligation of the
st at e.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon stressed that she was concerned whether
t he Munici pal Bond Bank woul d be used, and whether the debt

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 03/ 14/ 16 8:59 A M



would be a noral obligation to the state. M. Terriault
agreed to provide that information.

Co-Chair MacKinnon remarked that she was trying to
understand the different types of debt in the state.

Senator Bishop asserted that a small business could use a
private lender to wutilize the program M. Terriault
agreed. He noted that the bill allowed for private |enders
to bring a source of noney. The repaynent was done by the
additional voluntary assessnent that would attach to the
property. The | ocal governnent would collect the noney, and
was contractually obligated to take the noney to pay back
t he bank.

SB 56 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#sbl
SENATE BILL NO 1

"An Act prohibiting smoking in certain places;
relating to education on the snoking prohibition; and
providing for an effective date."

9:16: 05 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon introduced the |egislation.

Vice-Chair Mcciche announced that he did not normally
support legislation like SB 1. He felt that governnent
should be limted, but felt that the reduction of exposure
to second hand snoke was appropriate for governnental
regul ation. He stressed that second hand snoke was a nmjor
cause of needl ess preventable death. He stated that second
hand snoke killed four tinmes as many people that were
killed annually from drunk driving. He stressed that
approxi mately one-half of Alaska's popul ation was protected
by the law, and the other half did not have the capacity to
create this type of law. He stressed that the bill would
create a standard that would provide a |level playing field
for second hand snoke in Alaska. He shared that the |ast

poll in 2015 showed that over 80 percent of Al askans
supported snoke free laws protecting workers. He stressed
that it was not a "heavy handed enforcenent issue." He

shared that the sane law was in place in Anchorage since
2007, and there were zero citations issued in that tine. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 03/ 14/ 16 8:59 A M



shared that the bill would reduce the cost of Medicaid by
mllions of dollars. He stated that Medicaid recipients
were 2.5 times nore likely to snoke than non-recipients. He
shared that with the additives in vape juice such and
cannabi noi ds and synthetic cannabinoids, so workers should
not be exposed to these substances. He shared that the
fiscal notes in the bill added up to $14, 000, which was for
sign replacenment. He shared that there was a sponsor to
cover that cost. He stressed that there would be zero
fiscal inpact to the state.

9:19:11 AM

CHUCK KOPP, STAFF, SENATOR PETER M CCI CHE, explained the
Sectional Analysis (copy on file):

Section 1 — AS 18.35 is anended by addi ng new sections
to read:

18. 35. 301 Prohibition of Snoking

Page 1, lines 5 -14 and page 2, lines 1-2: (a)
prohibits smoking in enclosed areas in public
pl aces, i ncl udi ng encl osed ar eas at an
entertai nment venue or sports arena; in vehicles
used for public transportation; at public
transportation facilities and depots; at a retail
store or shopping center; at places of public
assenbly on property owned by the state or other
unit of |ocal governnent.

Page 2, lines 3 - 16: (b) prohibits snoking in
certain enclosed areas: office buildings, hotels,
not el s, restaurants, bar s, retail stores or

common areas in apartnent and nultiple famly
dwel lings, a place of enploynent, a building or
residence used to provide paid childcare, at
heal thcare facilities, in a vehicle that is a
pl ace of enploynent, at a public or private
educational facility; at a residence where paid
adult care is provided; at a residence in a
heal thcare facility, hotel, or notel; and on a
mari ne vessel operati ng as a shore-based
fisheries business under AS 43.75.

Page 2, lines 17 - 30: (c) prohibits snoking
outdoors in certain areas: at public or private

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 03/ 14/ 16 8:59 A M



school s; state or rmuni ci pal parks primarily
designated as a place for children to play; in
seating areas for outdoor arenas, stadiuns and
anphitheaters; within 50 feet of an entrance to a
heal thcare facility, 20 feet of an entrance, open
w ndow, or heating or ventilation system air
i ntake vent at a place where snoking s
prohibited wunder this section; or wthin a
reasonabl e di stance of an entrance, open w ndow,
or heating or ventilation air intake on a marine
vessel as determned by the vessel operator in
char ge.

Page 2, line 31 — p. 3, lines 1 - 23: (d) allows
snoking at a retail tobacco or e-cigarette store
unl ess the owner or operator prohibits it, and
defines “retail tobacco or e-cigarette store”.

Page 3, lines 24-29: (e) permts an enclosed
snoking area at Alaska International Airport
System airports for international passengers who
are in-transit and restricted by federal |aw from
|l eaving the airport and establishes ventilation
requirenents.

Page 3, lines 30-31 and Page 4, lines 1-4: (f)
allows snmoking in a vehicle that is a place of
enpl oynent used exclusively by one person; and on
a marine vessel when it is engaged in conmmerci al
fishing or sport charter fishing or is otherw se
used as a place of enpl oynent.

Page 4, Ilines 5-6: (g) allows snoking in a
private residence that is not wused for paid
childcare, adult <care, and as a healthcare
facility.

Page 4, lines 7-14: (h) makes it optional for the
departnment (DEC) to adopt regul ations authorizing
snoki ng in stand-al one shelters.

9:25: 21 AM

M. Kopp continued to discuss the sectional

18.35.306 Notice of Prohibition

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 03/ 14/ 16 8:59 A M

anal ysi s:



Page 4, lines 15-28: describes the obligations of
enpl oyers, owners and operators of places and
vehi cl es where snoking is prohibited to post “no
snoking” signs within those places or vehicles
and at or near the entrances; and establishing a
Maxi mum $50 fine for failure to conply. This

section al so requires t he Depart ment of
Environnmental Conservation to furnish signs upon
request .

18.35. 311 Duty of enployers and buil di ng managers

Page 4, lines 29-31 and Page 5, line 1. (a) an
enpl oyer may not permt an enployee, custoner or
ot her person to snoke inside an enclosed area at
a place of enploynent;

Page 5, lines 1-3: (b) an owner, operator, or
manager of a building or other place where
snoking is prohibited may not provide ashtrays or
other snobking accessories for use in that
bui | di ng or pl ace.

18. 35. 321 Public Education

Page 5, lines 4-13: requires the comm ssioner of
envi ronnmental conservation to provide a program
of education regarding AS 18.35.301 - 18.35.399
to enployers, other affected parties and nenbers
of the public; and that this program my be
provi ded in conbi nati on wth t he current
conpr ehensi ve snoki ng educat i on program
established in Health and Social Services at AS
44.29.020(a)(14) which seeks in part to “prevent
yout h initiation of t obacco use, pr onot e
cessation anong tobacco users, and educate the
public about the lethal effects of exposure to

secondhand snoke”, and al so i ncl udes “an

enf orcenment conponent” in AS 44.29.020(a)(14)(E)
18. 35. 326 Nonretaliation

Page 5, lines 14-20: prohibits enployers from

di scrimnating against an enployee because the
enpl oyee cooperated with or initiated enforcenent
of a requirenment in AS 18.35.301-18.35.399; and
simlarly prohibits owners or operators of

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 03/ 14/ 16 8:59 A M



vehicl es or other places subject to AS 18.35.301
— 18.35.399 fromretaliating against customers or
other nenbers of the public due to their
cooperation with or initiation of enforcenment of
the requirements in AS 18. 35. 301-18. 35. 399.

18.35.331 Conflicts with local requirenents

Page 5, Ilines 21-26: a nunicipality 1is not
prohi bited from adopting and enforcing |ocal |aws
with additional prohibitions on snoking or
addi ti onal duties for enpl oyers, owner s,
oper at or s, and ot her per sons subj ect to
requi renents of 18.35.306 and 18. 35. 311

Section 2 - Page 5, lines 27 - 30: Existing AS
18.35.340(a) Civil conplaints; penalties is reinstated
and anmended to incorporate the new |anguage of
18. 35. 301, 18.35.306, 18.35.311 and 18.35.326 and
requires t he comm ssi oner of envi ronnent a

conservation to develop and naintain a procedure for
processing reports of violations.

Section 3 - Page 6, lines 1 - 9: Existing AS
18.35.340(b) is reinstated, adds conform ng changes
and establishes how the comm ssioner or his enployee
desi gnee may enforce the provisions of Section 1

Section 4 - Page 6, lines 10 -18: Existing AS
18. 35. 340(c) is reinstated, and adds conformng
changes. This Section establishes a fine of $10 - $50
for violations of 18.35.301, 18.35.311, and 18. 35. 326,
and a fine of $20 - $300 for a violation of 18.35.306.

Section 5 - Page 6, lines 19 - 23: Existing AS
18.35.341 (a) Citations; penalties is reinstated, adds
conform ng changes, and establishes what violations
must be commtted in a peace officer’s presence before
the peace officer my issue a citation, and the
uniform citation format and procedure that nust be
used.

9:30: 22 AM

M.

Kopp continued to discuss the sectional analysis.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 03/ 14/ 16 8:59 A M



Section 6 — Page 6, lines 24 — 31, and Page 7, lines
1-2: Existing AS 18.35.341(b) is reinstated; adds

conform ng changes; est abl i shes how  designated
enpl oyees of DEC nay issue citations for violations of
Section 1; that they wll be processed in the sane

manner as citations issued by peace officers in
18.35.341(a); and that an enployee of DEC nmy not
arrest a person for a violation of Section 1.

Section 7 - Page 7, lines 3 - 11. Existing AS
18.35.341(c) is reinstated; adds conform ng changes;
establishes that violations of 18.35.301, 18.35. 306,
18.35.311 and 18.35.326 are non-crimnal offenses;
sets fines for violations of 18.35.301, 18.35.311, and
18.35.326 at $10 - $50, and a fine of $20 - $300 for a
violation of 18.35.306; and establishes that each day
a violation of 18.35.306 continues after a citation
has been issued constitutes a separate violation.

Section 8 - Page 7, lines 12 - 17: Existing AS
18.35.341(d) is reinstated; adds conform ng changes;
establishes that the suprene court wll establish a

bail schedule for violations of 18.35.301, 18.35.306
18.35.311 and 18.35.326; that bail anobunts may not
exceed those listed in 18.35.341(c); and that the bail
anount nust appear on the citation.

Section 9 - Page 7, lines 18 - 21: Existing AS
18.35.342 Multiple fines prohibited is reinstated, and
adds conform ng changes. Establishes that a person may
not be fined nore than once for each violation of
18. 35. 301, 18.35.306, 18.35.311 and 18. 35. 326.

Section 10 - Page 7, lines 22 - 25: Existing AS
18. 35. 343 I nj uncti ons is rei nst at ed, and adds
conform ng changes. Est abl i shes t hat t he DEC

commi ssioner or any affected party may institute an
action in the superior court to enjoin repeated
violations of 18.35.301, 18.35.306, 18.35.311 and
18. 35. 326.

Section 11 - Page 7, lines 26 - 30: Existing AS
18.35.350 Enforcenent authority is reinstated, and
adds conform ng changes. Establishes that the DEC
comm ssioner or designee is responsible to enforce the
provisions of 18.35.301 - 18.35.399, and that this

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 03/ 14/ 16 8:59 A M



section does not |limt the authority of peace
of ficers.

Section 12 — Page 7, line 31, page 8, lines 1 — 31,

and page 9, lines 1 -13: Adds a new Definitions
section, specifically anendi ng definitions of
“comm ssioner” from Health and Social Services to
Envi r onnment al Conservati on; and “departnent” from
Heal t h and Soci al Servi ces to Envi r onnment al

Conservati on

Section 13 - Page 9, lines 14 - 15: Repealing
| anguage.

Section 14 - Page 9, lines 16 — 23: Applicability
cl ause.

Section 15 - Page 9, lines 24 - 29: Transition of

regul ati ons cl ause.

Section 16 — Page 9, line 30: Imediate effective date
for Section 15.

Section 17 — Page 9, line 31: Establishes Cctober 1
2015 effective date, excluding Section 16.

9:32:40 AM

M. Kopp explained that there was a rigorous discussion in
the State Affairs Conmttee. He stressed that it was a
policy call to determne where the program should be
housed. He shared that it was preferred that the program be
held in the Departnent of Health and Social Services
(DHSS) .

Co- Chair MacKi nnon announced that public testinony be
l[imted to two mnutes.

Senator Bishop asked for restatenent of a statistic related
to DU and snoking. M. Kopp replied that the Center for
Di sease Control, in the 50th Anniversary Report on Snoking
in America in 2010, identified that between 2005 and 2009
480, 000 people per year in Anerica died of snoking related
deaths. He explained that DU had approximately 10,000
deat hs per year

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 03/ 14/ 16 8:59 A M



Senat or Dunl eavy wondered how the exceptions in closed
commercial fishing vessels were determ ned. M. Kopp
responded that the sport charter boats and conmerci al
fishing boats could be unsafe. He remarked that people were
outsi de 99 percent of the tine.

9: 36: 36 AM

Senat or Dunleavy remarked that there had been a simlar
di scussion the year prior related to marijuana. M. Kopp
responded that the marijuana discussion was not a part of
the creating of the |egislation.

APUBLI C TESTI MONY

9: 38: 28 AM

ZACHARY  STOCKTON, TEENS AGAI NST  TOBACCO, KENAI (via
tel econference), testified in support of SB 1. He shared
that future generations should not be required to worry
about this issue. He stressed that second hand snoke had
proved to cause heart di sease and cancer.

9:39: 59 AM

RACHEL TODD, TEENS AGAI NST TOBACCO, KENAI (via
tel econference), spoke in support of SB 1

9:40: 53 AM

JENNY  OLENDCRFF, SELF, SOLDOTNA (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 1. She stressed that enployees
and business owners did not have the right to expose their
enpl oyees to toxic chem cals.

9:42:11 AM

PAMELA  HOMARD, SELF, SOLDOTNA (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 1.

9:43: 44 AM

CARMEN LUNDE, KODI AK CHARR, KOCDIAK (via teleconference),
spoke against SB 1. She felt that business owners had the
right to determ ne what occurred in their businesses. She
felt that punishing snokers for their own good went agai nst
their rights. She remarked that snoking bans violated

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 03/ 14/ 16 8:59 A M



private property laws. She stated that Kodiak had six
snoke-free bars, and six snoking bars.

9:45: 48 AM

TERRENCE ROBBINS, SELF, KETCH KAN (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 1. He shared that he had seen
his grandfather and aunts die from cancer caused by
snoking. He stressed that protecting Alaska from second
hand snoke woul d enhance public health.

9:47: 00 AM

ANGELA CARROLL, SMXE-FREE ALTERNATIVE TRADE ASSCOCI ATI ON,
WASI LLA (via teleconference), spoke against SB 1. She felt
that the legislation would hurt the vape industry in
Al aska.

9:48: 19 AM

ALEX  MCDONALD, OMNNER, | CEBOX  VAPORY, FAl RBANKS (via
tel econference), testified against SB 1. He felt that the
| egislation would linmt the personal rights of individuals,
privacy, and freedom of choi ce.

9:52: 00 AM

JESSIE WALTON, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
opposed SB 1.

9: 53: 45 AM

LI NCOLN BEAN SR, ALL HEAL THCARE, KAKE (via
tel econference), spoke in support of SB 1.

9: 55: 28 AM

ROBERT URATA, MEMBER, AMERI CAN HEART ASSCCI ATI ON, JUNEAU
(via tel econference), testified in support of SB 1.

9:57:16 AM

DI ANA  REDWOOD, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 1. She stated that she had
frequented bars that allowed snoking in her twenties. She
was grateful that Anchorage was snoke-free, and pitied the
comuni ties that did not have a ban.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 03/ 14/ 16 8:59 A M



9:58:15 AM

MAUREEN NARUS, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), spoke
in support of SB 1.

9:59: 44 AM

Bl LL ROSS, SELF, ANCHORACGE (via teleconference), testified
in support of SB 1. He stated that his wife had died as a
result of the effects of second hand snoke.

10: 01: 44 AM

DALE  FOX, PRESI DENT, ALASKA  CHARR, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), testified against SB 1. He shared that
Al aska CHARR believed in the right of freedom of choi ce.

10: 04: 07 AM

M CHAEL PATTERSQN, SELF, JUNEAU, testified in support SB 1

10: 06: 41 AM

ANGELA CERNI CH, SELF, JUNEAU, spoke in support of SB 1. She
shared that she had a disease as a result of second hand
snoke.

10: 09: 02 AM

MARQUETTA ANDRAS, SELF, JUNEAU, spoke in support of SB 1.
She explained that her father was a heavy snoker. She
stated that she alnost died at 2 weeks old, because she had
pneunonia as a result of second hand snoke.

10: 11: 35 AM

JOAN CAHI LL, SELF, JUNEAU, spoke in support of SB 1. She
stated that she had grown up in a hone exposed to second
hand snoke.

10: 14: 20 AM

K. T. MCKEE, AMERI CAN LUNG ASSCCI ATION I N ALASKA, MAT-SU
(via teleconference), testified in support of SB 1. She
stressed that second hand snoke was the major source of

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 03/ 14/ 16 8:59 A M



preventabl e disease. She shared that the bill had the
support of nearly 1000 Al aska busi nesses.

10: 16: 28 AM

ASHLEY PELTI ER, SELF, MAT-SU (via teleconference), spoke in
support of SB 1. She felt that everyone had the right to
breathe clean air. She also encouraged the inclusion of e-
cigarettes.

10:17: 14 AM

ROBIN M NARD, MAT-SU HEALTH FOUNDATI ON, MAT-SU (via
tel econference), testified in support of SB 1. She stated
that Mat-Su did not have the capability to create its own
snoke-free work place regul ati ons.

10: 18: 09 AM

TERRY SNYDER, SELF, MATSU (via teleconference), testified
in support of SB 1. She stressed that the supporters of
snoke-free  workpl ace regul ati ons had not financi al
i ncentives behi nd their per sonal support of t he
| egi sl ation. She stressed that clean safe work environnents
were a right for all Al askans.

10: 20: 18 AM

KAREN PERDUE, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), spoke
in support of SB 1. She stated that she had been involved
i n tobacco regul ati ons.

10: 22: 07 AM

LARRY HACKENM LLER, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference)
spoke against SB 1. He felt that second hand snoke did not
cause a hazardous work pl ace.

10: 24: 45 AM

STEVE WARREN, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference), spoke in
support of SB 1.

10: 25: 58 AM

TAW VEI SSNER, SELF, WRANGELL (via teleconference)
testified in support of SB 1.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 03/ 14/ 16 8:59 A M



10: 27: 24 AM

STEVE MAPES, SELF, KENAI (via teleconference), spoke in
opposition of SB 1. He stated that his father had died of
lung cancer as a result of snoking. He stated that his
not her had al so died of lung cancer. He shared that he had
been able to quit snoking as a result of e cigarettes. He
stressed that vaping was not snoking.

10: 29: 40 AM

CHRYSTAL SCHOENROCK, SECRETARY, KENAI PENI NSULA CHARR
NI KI SKI (via tel econference), spoke in opposition to SB 1

10: 32: 10 AM

ROBIN FORSI, SELF, SOLDOTNA (via teleconference), testified
in support of SB 1. She shared some comments from a student
from Soldotna, Jackson Blackwell. She read a prepared
statenent from M. Bl ackwell.

10: 34: 57 AM

JOHNA BEACH, SELF, KENAI (via teleconference), testified in
support of SB 1. She remarked that she had worked as a
waitress in a nonsnoking restaurant with a snoking roomin
t he establishnment. She stressed that the bill was directed
at enpl oyee safety.

10: 37: 02 AM

PETE BURNS, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified
in support of SB 1.

10: 39: 04 AM

STAN SELMAN, CLUB PARI'S, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 1.

10: 40: 30 AM

KEN HELANDER, AMERI CAN ASSOCI ATION OF RETIRED PERSONS
( AARP) , ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in
support of SB 1. He stressed that healthy young people
woul d beconme heal t hy adul ts.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 03/ 14/ 16 8:59 A M



10: 41: 28 AM

JULIE WRI GLEY, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 1. She stated that her children
were Alaska's future work force. She stressed that second
hand snoke contributed to many cancer risks. She felt that
everyone had the right to breathe snoke-free air.

10: 43: 05 AM

BEVERLY  WOCLEY, SELF, MAT-SU (via tel econference),
testified in support of SB 1.

10: 46: 13 AM

GAI L  SCH EMANN, SELF, ANCHORACGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 1.

10: 47: 04 AM

KATI E  STEFFENS, SELF, ANCHORACGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of SB 1.

10:49: 02 AM

VENDI E  MACNAUGHTQON, AMERI CAN HEART ASSCCI ATI ON, FAI RBANKS
(via tel econference), testified in support of SB 1.

10: 49: 56 AM

KRI STEN LUBY, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via t el econference),
testified in support of SB 1.

10: 50: 32 AM

EDY RODEWALD, SELF, JUNEAU, testified in support of SB 1.

10: 52: 23 AM

KRI STIN COX, SELF, JUNEAU, testified in support of SB 1.

10: 54: 55 AM

CAROCLYN CLI FT, SELF, ANCHORACE (via teleconference), spoke
agai nst SB 1.

10: 56: 59 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 03/ 14/ 16 8:59 A M



BARBARA DOTY, ALASKA ACADEMY OF FAM LY PHYSI CI ANS, WASILLA
(via tel econference), testified in support of SB 1.

10: 59: 26 AM
AT EASE

10: 59: 50 AM
RECONVENED

11: 00: 25 AM

EM LY NENON, AVERI CAN  CANCER SOCI ETY, CANCER ACTI ON
NETWORK, JUNEAU (via teleconference), testified in support
of SB 1.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon CLOSED public testinony.

SB 1 was HEARD and HELD in conmmttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT
11: 03: 36 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 11:03 a. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 03/ 14/ 16 8:59 A M



